This meeting will be by teleconference pursuant to Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20.
The Board of Directors (“Board”) and employees of the Pacific View Charter School shall
meet via the Zoom meeting platform. Members of the public who wish to access this Board
meeting may do so at: ttps://usO4web.zoom.us/|/78363786176?pwd=nZnRiU0Ji0VZbybiZKO5FZf8QPsXax.1

Members of the public who wish to comment during the Board meeting may use the “raise
hand” tool on the Zoom platform. Members of the public calling in will be given the
opportunity to address the Board during the meeting. Individual comments will be limited
to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to
English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time for
public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a
participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board meeting.

Access to Board Materials: A copy of the written materials which will be submitted to the
Board may be reviewed by any interested persons on The Pacific View Charter School’s
website along with this agenda following the posting of the agenda at least 72 hours in
advance of this meeting.

Disability Access: Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to
participate in this public meeting should be made 24 hours prior to the meeting by calling
(760) 757-0161x105. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and
public documents can be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans
with Disabilities Act.

Pacific View Charter School

A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation
3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, California 92056
Phone # (760) 757-0161

AGENDA

Board of Trustees’ Meeting
Tuesday, January 18, 2022

3:30pm
1.0 Call to Order/Roll Call
2.0 Approval of Agenda Action
3.0 Pledge of Allegiance
4.0 Public Comment
5.0 Introductions
6.0 Executive Director’s Report Information

7.0 Consent Calendar



https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us04web.zoom.us/j/78363786176?pwd%3DnZnRiU0Ji0VZbybiZkO5FZf8QPsXgx.1&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1642273815351573&usg=AOvVaw31_HytNi6a2ZTW0hoYxPbl

These agenda items are considered routine and will be approved in one action without discussion. If a Board
Trustee requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar or a citizen wishes to speak to an item, the
item will be considered under Action Items.

7.1 Minutes from Board Meeting of December 14, 2021
Minutes from Board Meeting of December 15, 2021 Action

8.0 Action/Discussion Items
8.1 Pacific View Charter School 2020-2021 Annual Audit

Presenting: Scott Gustafsson, Partner Eide Bailly LLP Action
8.2 Executive Director position

Presenting: Jon Walters, Board Chair Action
8.3 Board Member Profile- Ricardo Sanchez Action
8.4 Board Warrant Listing December 1,2021 through December 30, 2021 Action
8.5 2022-2023 School Calendar Action
8.6 AB361 — Teleconferencing Executive Order N-29-20 Action
8.7 Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School/Agency Services Master Contract for

2021-2022 school year. Action

9.0 Curriculum

9.1 Literacy Prep Virtual Course Outline Action
9.2 ELD B Course Outline Action
9.3 STEM Literacy B Action

10.0 Personnel
10.1 Director of Finance & Central Office Job Description Action

11.0 Board Staff Discussion

12.0 Adjournment
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Pacific View Charter School
A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation

3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, California 92056
Phone # (760) 757-0161

Board of Trustees’ Meeting —Tuesday, December 14, 2021
3:30 p.m.
Board Minutes

1.0 Call to Order/Roll Call
Chairperson Walters called the meeting to order at 3:45 pm.

13.0 Adjournment - Chair Walters called the meeting due to lack of quorum at 3:48pm continuing the
meeting to Wednesday, December 15, 2021 at 2:00pm.




Pacific View Charter School

A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation
3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, California 92056
Phone # (760) 757-0161
Board of Trustees’ Meeting —~Wednesday, December 15, 2021
2:00 pm
Board Minutes

1.0 Call to Order/Roll Call
Chairperson Walters called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm. Present Vice Chair Weber, and Trustee Meyer
absent.

2.0 Approval of Agenda
Moved by Vice Chair Weber and seconded by Chair Walters to approve the agenda as presented.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

3.0 Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was let by Founding Executive Director, Gina Campbell.

4.0 Public Comment - None

5.0 Introductions — Linda Moore, Special Education Coordinator

6.0 Executive Director’s Report

CPR training for staff was provided at both sites last week

Our Annual Winter Fesitval at both sites took place December 10

Go Cycling- students have been taken to Oceanside Beach to ride their bikes twice in the past couple
of weeks. This program will continue after the first of the year

CSDC Conference — four staff attended. This conference is built around Charters with an emphasis
on Independent Study.

+ Enroliment- 434 Oceanside and 169 Moreno Valley Total: 603

= #+#

7.0 Treasurer’s Report
+ There is still 54% of revenues to be received
+ Only expended 42% of the budget but anticipate that more items will be purchased in the coming
weeks

8.0 Consent Calendar
8.1 Moved by Chair Walters & seconded by Vice Chair Weber to approve the Consent
Calendar as presented.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

9.0 Action/Discussion ltems




9.1 Moved by Chair Walters & seconded by Vice Chair Weber to approve the Board Warrant Listing
for November 1, 2021 through November 30, 2021 as presented.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

9.2 Moved by Vice-Chair Weber & seconded by Chair Walters to approve the Educator
Effectiveness Plan as presented.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

9.3 Moved by Chair Walters and seconded by Vice Chair Weber to approve the AB361
Teleconferencing Executive Order N-29-20 for the month of January.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

9.4 Moved by Chair Walters and seconded by Vice Chair Weber to approve the retirement of the 1.1
Computer Roll Out Agreement.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

9.5 Moved by Vice Chair Weber and seconded by Chair Walters to approve the Interview Selection
Committee. Jon Walters, Gayl Johnson, Bryron Winick, Lori Bentley, Kathy Meck, and Sandra Benson as
the chair of the committee.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer

9.6 Moved by Vice Chair Weber and seconded Chair Walters by to approve the revision of the Interview
guestions; Question 2 strike Program and update to Charter School. Addition of Question 9. Tell us the
significance of the SB740 to Independent Study Charter Schools.

AYES: Walters, Weber
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Meyer



10.0 Board Staff Discusstion
There was discussion of the timeline for the committee to meet and the process. Executive Director

Campbell let the Board know that the Committee Chair would be contacting them to set up a meeting to
discuss the process

11.0 Adjournment - Chair Walters adjourned the meeting at 2:22 pm
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Governing Board
Pacific View Charter School
Oceanside, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pacific View Charter School

(the Organization) (a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Organization, as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary on pages 17-20 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the financial statements.

The supplementary information on pages 17-20 is the responsibility of management, and was derived
from, and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

, 2022 on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Rancho Cucamonga, California
, 2022




Pacific View Charter School
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2021

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued compensated absences
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of capital leases

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Notes payable, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

$ 4,830,834
1,430,966
19,726

6,281,526

5,571,170

$ 11,852,696

$ 474,677
120,427
1,044,894
6,204

1,646,202

2,074,962

3,721,164

8,131,532

$ 11,852,696




Pacific View Charter School
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues
Local Control Funding Formula S 7,699,112
Federal revenue 124,627
Other State revenue 1,201,059
Local revenues 23,758
Interest income 23,437
Total support and revenues 9,071,993

Expenses
Program services 6,453,144
Management and general 1,683,983
Total expenses 8,137,127
Change in Net Assets 934,866
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7,196,666
Net Assets, End of Year S 8,131,532

See Notes to Financial Statements 4



Pacific View Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Management Total
Services and General Expenses
Salaries S 3,710,830 S 927,708 S 4,638,538
Employee benefits 987,925 246,981 1,234,906
Payroll taxes 524,144 131,036 655,180
Fees for services 34,267 8,567 42,834
Office expenses 640,778 160,194 800,972
Information technology 48,633 12,158 60,791
Conferences and meeting 7,933 1,983 9,916
Interest 84,079 21,020 105,099
Depreciation 198,982 49,745 248,727
Insurance 50,407 12,602 63,009
Other expenses 22,574 5,644 28,218
Instructional materials 142,593 35,648 178,241
District oversight fees - 70,697 70,697
Total functional expenses S 6,453,144 S 1,683,983 S 8,137,127

See Notes to Financial Statements 5



Pacific View Charter School
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Operating Activities
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from (used for) operating activities

Depreciation expense

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment

Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of notes

Principal payments on notes

Principal payments on capital leases
Net Cash from (used for) Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure
Cash paid during the year in interest

See Notes to Financial Statements

S 934,866

248,727

(328,734)
(11,205)
(83,546)

15,309

775,417

(194,197)

772,439
(261,269)
(7,921)

503,249

1,084,469

3,746,365

S 4,830,834

S 105,099




Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Note 1- Principal Activity and Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Pacific View Charter School (the Organization) was incorporated in the State of California in 1999 as a nonprofit
public benefit corporation that is organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law exclusively for
charitable and educational purposes within the meaning of 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954. The
Organization was approved by the State of California Department of Education on July 14, 1999. The
Organization opened in 1999 and currently serves approximately 684 students in grades K - 12. In 2019, the
Organization was renewed by Oceanside Unified School District for five years ending 2024.

Charter school number authorized by the State: 0247

Mission: “The Pacific View Charter School community is focused on the success of each student and partners
with parents in the education of their children. The school is committed to providing a safe and exceptional
learning environment utilizing 21st Century tools, resources and curriculum. Highly Qualified Teachers guide the
learning process through current research and methodologies.”

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit
organizations. Revenues are recognized as discussed below, and expenditures are recognized in the accounting
period in which the liability is incurred.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to
donor restrictions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. Some donor
imposed (or grantor) restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. The Organization did not have net assets with donor
restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all cash including cash in County Investment Pool and highly liquid financial

instruments with original maturities of three months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by
donors for long-term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.



Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Receivables and Credit Policies

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for educational programs.
Management determines the allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable based on historical experience, an
assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off
when deemed uncollectable. No allowance for doubtful accounts has been established, as the Organization
deems all amounts to be fully collectible. Substantially all outstanding accounts receivable as of June 30, 2021
are due from state and/or federal sources related to grant contributions and are expected to be collected within
a period of less than one year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
ranging from 3 to 30 years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of
the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
depreciation is removed from the accounts, and any remaining gain or loss is included in the statement of
activities. Cost of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective
assets are expensed currently.

The Organization reviews the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future
cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment
loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of
asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Operating funds for the Organization are derived principally from state and federal sources. The Organization
receives state funding based on each of the enrolled student’s average daily attendance (ADA) in its school.
Contributions are recognized when cash or notification of an entitlement is received.

A portion of the Organization’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and
grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable
qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the statement of financial position.



Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Contributions of goods are recorded at fair value. Contributions of services are recorded at fair value as revenue
at the time the service is rendered when specialized skills are required and when the Organization would
otherwise purchase the services. No amounts have been reflected in the accompanying financial statements for
contributed goods or services during the year being reported because items did not meet the definition above.
Contributions with donor restrictions received are recorded as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
Net assets with donor restrictions received are recognized as revenue without donor restrictions when the
terms of the restrictions are met, which may be in the same period if the revenue is received and the restriction
satisfied during the same period. All contributions are considered to be available for use without donor
restrictions unless specifically restricted by the donor.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report categories of expenses that are attributed to program service activities or
supporting services activities such as management and general activities and fundraising and development
activities. The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited based on management’s estimates. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy and
depreciation, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages, benefits, payroll
taxes, professional services, information technology, interest, insurance, and other, which are allocated on the
basis of estimates of time and effort.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a California nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code
as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) and qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction. It is also
exempt from State franchise and income taxes under Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation
Code. The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business
activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. The Organization determined that it is not subject to
unrelated business income tax and has not filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return

(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Management believes that the Organization has appropriate support for any tax positions taken affecting its
annual filing requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material to the
financial statements. The Organization would recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax expense if such interest and penalties are incurred.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.



Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions believed by management to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, no losses have been
experienced in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable are considered to be
limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are
due from governmental agencies supportive of the Organization’s mission.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires a
lessee to recognize a lease asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term, and a lease
liability for the payments to be made to lessor, on its statement of financial position for all operating leases
greater than 12 months. Although the full impact of this update on the Organization’s financial statements has
not yet been determined, the future adoption of this guidance will require the Organization to record assets and
liabilities on its statement of financial position relating to facility and other leases currently being accounted for
as operating leases. The ASU is effective for the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2023. Management is
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.

In September 2020, FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by
Not-for-Profit Entities Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, which requires a nonprofit entity to present contributed
nonfinancial assets in the statement of activities as a line item that is separate from contributions of cash or
other financial assets. ASU 2020-07 also requires additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures about
contributed nonfinancial assets received, disaggregated by category. The ASU is effective for the Organization
for the year ended June 30, 2022. Management is evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.

Change in Accounting Principle

As of July 1, 2020, the Organization adopted the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which provides a comprehensive revenue recognition model for all
contracts with customers. The new model requires revenue recognition to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received in exchange for
those goods or services. Management has determined that the adoption of this standard did not have a
significant impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework —
Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement, which modifies the disclosure
requirements for fair value measurements by removing, modifying, or adding certain disclosures. ASU 2018-13 is
effective for all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after

December 15, 2019. The Organization has adopted this ASU as of July 1, 2020. Management has determined
that the adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

10



Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Note 2 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents S 4,830,834
Accounts receivable 1,430,966
Total S 6,261,800

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available
as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations become due.

Note 3 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2021:

Land S 1,158,491
Building improvements 836,717
Building 4,214,404
Computer and equipment 467,971
6,677,583

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,106,413)
Total $ 5,571,170

Note4 - Notes Payable
Notes payable consist of the following at June 30, 2021:

Note payable, principal and interest at 0.26%, collateralized by (A)

Fiscal Year 20-21 March 2021 LCFF Current payment; (B) by Fiscal Year

20-21 April 2021 LCFF Current payment and (C) Fiscal Year 20-21

May 2021 LCFF Current payment, with a carrying value of $772,439;

maturing in 2022. S 772,439

11



Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Note payable, due in variable monthly installments with principal and
interest at 4.20%, collateralized by a Deed of Trust covering certain real
property and improvements commonly known as 3660-3682 Ocean
Ranch Blvd, Oceanside, CA, and certain personal property used in
connection there with all as more particularly described in the Deed of
Trust, with a carrying value of $2,300,000; maturing in 2027.

Note payable, due in variable monthly installments with principal and
interest at 4.20%. The Organization pledges and grants to Lender a first
lien on the real property located at 22695 Alessandro Blvd, Moreno
Valley, CA, with a carrying value of $1,632,100; maturing in 2031.

Total
Future maturities of notes payable are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total

Note 5- Capital Leases

S 1,166,209
1,181,208
S 3,119,856

Principal

$ 1,044,894
284,121
296,287
308,974
322,203
863,377

$ 3,119,856

The Organization leases vehicles under various leases expiring at various dates through 2022.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2022

Less amount representing interest

Total

$ 6,332
(128)
$ 6,204

12



Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Leased property under capital leases includes the following at June 30, 2021:

Vehicles S 56,800
Less accumulated amortization (56,800)
Total S -

Note 6 - Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the California State Teachers’
Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS).

The risks of participating in these multi-employer defined benefit pension plans are different from single-
employer plans because: (a) assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to
provide benefits to employees of other participating employers, (b) the required member, employer, and State
contribution rates are set by the California Legislature, and (c) if the Organization chooses to stop participating
in the multi-employer plan, it may be required to pay a withdrawal liability to the plan. The Organization has no
plans to withdraw from this multi-employer plan.

The details of each plan are as follows:
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)
Plan Description

The Organization contributes to the State Teachers Retirement Plan (STRP) administered by the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively
amended, within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law.

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019, annual actuarial valuation report, Defined
Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalSTRS audited financial information are publicly available
reports that can be found on the CalSTRS website under Publications at: http://www.calstrs.com/member-
publications.
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Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Benefits Provided

The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are based on members’
final compensation, age and years of service credit. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five
years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after
January 1, 2013, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The
normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0% of final compensation for each year of credited service.

The STRP is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, Cash
Balance Benefit Program and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray
reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the State is
the sponsor of the STRP and obligor of the trust. In addition, the State is both an employer and nonemployer
contributing entity to the STRP.

The Organization contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program; thus, disclosures are not included
for the other plans.

The STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:

STRP Defined Benefit Program

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 2.0%-2.4% 2.0%-2.4%
Required employee contribution rate 10.25% 10.205%
Required employer contribution rate 16.15% 16.15%
Required state contribution rate 10.328% 10.328%

Contributions

Required member, Organization, and State of California contributions rates are set by the California Legislature
and Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. The contributions rates are expressed as a level
percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. In accordance with AB 1469, employer
contributions into the CalSTRS will be increasing to a total of 19.1% of applicable member earnings phased over
a seven-year period. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented above
and the Organization’s total contributions were $1,014,429.
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Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)
Plan Description

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the School Employer Pool (SEP) under the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system
defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

A full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting
purposes), and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019, annual actuarial valuation report, Schools
Pool Actuarial Valuation. This report and CalPERS audited financial information are publicly available reports
that can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and Publications at:
https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits
to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of service
credit, a benefit factor and the member’s final compensation. Members hired on or before December 31, 2012,
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired
on or after January 1, 2013, with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after five years of service. The Basic Death
Benefit is paid to any member’s beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. An employee’s eligible
survivor may receive the 1957 Survivor Benefit if the member dies while actively employed, is at least age 50

(or 52 for members hired on or after January 1, 2013), and has at least five years of credited service. The cost of
living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The CalPERS provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:

School Employer Pool (CalPERS)

On or before On or after
Hire date December 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible compensation 1.1% - 2.5% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rate 7.00% 7.00%
Required employer contribution rate 20.700% 20.700%
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Pacific View Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the

July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions are calculated through the CalPERS
annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The Organization is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. The contributions rates are expressed as percentage of
annual payroll. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented above and
the total Organization’s contributions were $220,477.

On Behalf Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of the Organization. These payments consist of
State General Fund contributions to CalSTRS in the amount of $451,185 (10.328% of annual payroll). Under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these amounts are to be reported as
revenues and expenditures. Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in these financial statements.

Note 7 - Contingencies, Risks, and Uncertainties

The Organization has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any reimbursement, if required, would not be material.

The Organization has been negatively impacted by the effects of the world-wide coronavirus pandemic. The
Organization is closely monitoring its operations, liquidity, and capital resources and is actively working to
minimize the current and future impact of this unprecedented situation. As of the issuance date of these
financial statements, the full impact to the Organization’s financial position is not known beyond increased cash
flow monitoring due to state apportionment deferrals.

Note 8 - Subsequent Events

The Organization’s management has evaluated events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements through , 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Management has determined that there were no subsequent events or
transactions that would have a material impact on the current year financial statements.

Assembly Bill 130 approved on July 9, 2021 extends the terms of all charter schools whose terms expire on or
between January 1, 2022 and June 30, 2025, inclusive, by two years. No action is required of charter authorizers
or charter schools for this extension.
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Pacific View Charter School
Local Education Agency Organization Structure
June 30, 2021

ORGANIZATION

Pacific View Charter School (the Organization) (Charter Number 0247) was granted in 1999, by Oceanside
Unified School District. The Organization operates in Oceanside and Moreno Valley along with neighboring
communities as an education alternative to the traditional setting.

GOVERNING BOARD

MEMBER OFFICE TERM EXPIRES
Jon Walters Chair July 1, 2021
Nichole Taylor Vice Chair July 1, 2021
Eve Meyer Trustee July 1, 2022

ADMINISTRATION

Gina Campbell Founding Executive Director

Kira Fox Director of Central Office and Finance
Erin Gorence Director of Curriculum

Gayl Johnson Director of Student Services

See Note to Supplementary Information 17



Pacific View Charter School
Schedule of Instructional Time
Year Ended June 30, 2021

California Education Code Section 47612.5 stated this schedule does not apply to independent study programs;
accordingly, such schedule has not been presented.

See Note to Supplementary Information 18



Pacific View Charter School
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Summarized below are the net asset reconciliations between the Unaudited Actual Financial Report and the
audited financial statements.

Net Assets
Balance, June 30, 2021, Unaudited Actuals S 7,405,419
Decrease in
Accounts receivable (163,587)
Refundable advance 1,392,949
Note payable (less current portion) 269,190
Increase in
Note payable (current portion) (772,439)
Balance, June 30, 2021, Audited Financial Statements S 8,131,532

See Note to Supplementary Information 19



Pacific View Charter School
Note to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2021

Note 1- Purpose of Supplementary Schedules
Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the Organization’s operations, members of the governing board, and
members of the administration.

Schedule of Instructional Time
This schedule presents information on the number of instructional days offered on the traditional calendar and
on any multitrack calendars by the Organization and whether the Organization complied with the provisions of
Education Code section 47612.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets reported on the unaudited actual
financial report to the audited financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

Governing Board
Pacific View Charter School
Oceanside, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Pacific View Charter
School (the Organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and
the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ,
2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying financial statement findings as item
2021-001, that we consider to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Pacific View Charter School’s Response to Finding

The Organization’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
financial statement findings. The Organization’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rancho Cucamonga, California
, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance

Governing Board
Pacific View Charter School
Oceanside, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Pacific View Charter School‘s (the Organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting applicable to the state laws and regulations listed in the table
below for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the state laws and regulations as identified in the table
below.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Organization’s compliance with state laws and
regulations based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to below. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the 2020-2021
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the compliance requirements listed below has occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on state compliance. However,
our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s compliance.
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Compliance Requirements Tested
In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to
determine the Organization’s compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Procedures
Performed

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES OTHER THAN CHARTER SCHOOLS (EXCEPT AS
STATED IN ATTENDANCE AND DISTANCE LEARNING AND INSTRUCTIONAL
TIME)

Attendance and Distance Learning

Teacher Certification and Misassignments
Kindergarten Continuance

Instructional Time

Instructional Materials

Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers
Classroom Teacher Salaries

Early Retirement Incentive

Gann Limit Calculation

School Accountability Report Card

K-3 Grade Span Adjustment

Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan

District of Choice

SCHOOL DISTRICTS, COUNTY OFFICES OF EDUCATION, AND
CHARTER SCHOOLS

California Clean Energy Jobs Act

Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Independent Study - Course Based

No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below
No, see below

No, see below
Yes
Yes

No, see below

CHARTER SCHOOLS
Attendance Yes
Mode of Instruction Yes
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study Yes
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction Yes
Charter School Facility Grant Program No, see below

Programs listed above for “Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools except as stated in
Attendance and Distance Learning and Instructional Time” are not applicable to charter schools;
therefore, we did not perform any related procedures.

We did not performed procedures for Attendance and Distance Learning and Instructional Time because
the Organization is entirely nonclassroom-based.

We did not perform California Clean Energy Jobs Act procedures because the Organization did not
receive funding for this program.



The Organization does not offer an Independent Study - Course Based program; therefore, we did not
perform any procedures related to the Independent Study - Course Based Program.

We did not perform procedures for the Charter School Facility Grant Program because the Organization
did not receive funding for this program.

Unmodified Opinion
In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the laws and regulations of the
state programs referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of our testing based on
the requirements of the 2020-2021 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rancho Cucamonga, California
, 2022
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Pacific View Charter School
Summary of Auditor’s Results
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Compliance

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for programs:

Unmodified

Yes
None reported

No

Unmodified
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Pacific View Charter School
Financial Statement Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2021

The following finding represents a material weakness related to the financial statements that is required to be
reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The finding has been coded as follows:

Five Digit Code AB 3627 Finding Type
30000 Internal Control
2021-001 30000 - Financial Statement Preparation and Audit Adjustments

Criteria or Specific Requirements

Management is responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls to
ensure that the financial statements are free from significant deficiencies, whether due to error or
fraud. This includes the posting of all material adjustments necessary to close the year and accurately
reflect the activity of the Organization.

Condition

Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit defines a material weakness and
significant deficiency. According to these definitions, an internal control system design must include
elements to accurately prepare financial statements without adjustments by the auditor.

Questioned Costs

There were no direct questioned costs associated with the condition identified.

Context

During the course of the audit, there were areas of the financial statement that were misstated.

Effect

During the course of our engagement, we identified material audit adjustments to the recorded account
balances in the financial statements which, if not recorded, would have resulted in a material
misstatement of the financial statements.

Cause

The Organization did not have a procedure in place to review all transaction classes to ensure accurate
reporting prior to closing of financial statements.
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Pacific View Charter School
Financial Statement Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Repeat Finding
No
Recommendation

Establish reconciliation procedures to ensure that financial statements are recorded correctly, and all
transactions of the account are properly accounted for.

Corrective Action Plan and Views of Responsible Officials
The Organization will implement a year-end checklist to ensure all applicable entries are captured and

entered during the closing process. This is to ensure that all relevant balance sheet and income
statement accounts are reviewed.

28



Pacific View Charter School
State Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2021

None reported.
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Pacific View Charter School
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2021

There were no audit findings reported in the prior year’s Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
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PACIFIC VIEW
CHARTER SCHOOL

A s A California Public School

7999

BOARD MEMBER PROFILE

Thank you for your interest in our board. We look forward to having you share your
experience, skills and background with us. By providing us with the following
information, you will assist us in creating a partnership that is mutually beneficial.

Name: Ricardo Sanchez

( ) Office Address:

(X) Home Address: I

(Please mark the address you would like us to use for mail and other written
commaunication)

Office Phon<j R
J2-Muil: rsanchez08@ft.newyorklife.com

How are you familiar with our organization? Do you have any relationships
with current board members or employees?

My wife and I found Pacific View Charter School as we were looking for a school for our
daughter, Zoe Sanchez, to attend online. We found a few but PVC was the school we
choose to enroll her in. Our daughter is now on her second enrollment year (2nd grade)


mailto:rsanchez08@ft.newyorklife.com

and we're very happy with the school’s mission. PVC values and education philosophy
aligns with what my wife and I believe, especially the part about parental involvement.

I do not have any relationship with current board members or employees.

What would you hope to help us accomplish as a member of the board?

I hope that my past experience as a public servant in Christian ministry, my
involvement in college ministry and my involvement as a parent in School Site Council,
will allow me to bring a parental view to some of the most important issues we face
concerning our children’s education. I believe that individuals who serve in this capacity
should have personal qualities that are becoming of leadership, such as: integrity,
respect, responsibility, honesty, and an unwavering commitment to do what is right. I
believe I poses such qualities, and I can help this organization by contributing these
virtues as a member of the board.

How do you view the role of a board member? Discuss your approach to
governance and commitment and the importance of meeting attendance.

Holding a seat in the school board would be an honor, much like any other position that
1s of public service. I've had the honor of being a chairperson for 4 years in one of my
child’s public schools. I've also had the honor to serve as a Christian minister for 14
years, serving the college ministry at Riverside County Church of Christ.

I currently hold a seat in a nonprofit farm called, Overflow Farms, that I helped kick-
start with my business partner. Overflow Farms is a farm that is growing food for the
community. We started the farm at the cusp of the 2020 pandemic national quarantine.
We quickly shifted to grow food to give to the community in need as grocery stores were
running out of food on store shelves. Today, our farm donates all its produce to local food
banks in Riverside, California.

When I accept a role like the ones described above, I accept them only if I believe I can
give my best to their causes. I believe at this juncture of my life; I can do that with PVC.



I'm a big believer that commitment and attendance are crucial to the success of proper
leadership and governance. I would not be applying, nor would I even consider such a
role as this if I were required to attend in person in the San Diego area. I currently
reside and work in Moreno Valley. However, I understand that attendance will be done
virtually. This is one of several reasons why I feel I can commit to serve in this way.

What specific skills or experience would you most like to share with us as a
potential board member?

I suppose my life experience and worldview has to play a major role in what I will be
able to share with the board members. I'm a God fearing man who loves his country and
stands for liberty, justice and truth. I do my best to approach all matters of life
objectively and set aside presuppositions or personal feelings. I enjoy having respectful
and intellectual discourse on subject matter that makes a read difference in people’s
lives. As an involved parent I would serve with the utmost care and dedication knowing
that my involvement in this position, can be a blessing to the children who this board
are entrusted to lead. I will use all my life skill, experiences, knowledge, and
Iinterpersonal traits to work with the other board members to bring about resolutions
that align with the school’s mission statement and the children’s best interests.

What is your educational philosophy?

My school philosophy is like that of Christian ministry. I believe and I have experienced
that the best way to raise a child in the Christian faith, is to start in the home. When
families who attend a local church and place membership, think that it’s the church’s
responsibility to convert and teach their children the essentials of the Christian faith, I
believe parents miss the mark of the power they must influence and teach their own
children. In this faith-based example, parent bear the burden of raising their children to
know God, fear God and live for God. If anything, the church is supportive and
supplemental in raising faith with children.



In similar fashion, I believe a child’s education is best obtained when there is parental
involvement and parental expectations. I have a personal story on this, but I will reserve
it for an in-person interview.

Educational background (please include schools/institutions, city/state,
degree(s) — also continuing education):

I have a degree in Electronics Engineering Technology from ITT, San Bernardino, CA.

I have also studied theology under the mentorship and teaching of Tim Montoya, a
theologian and pastor at Riverside County Church of Christ.

I'm currently contracted with New York Life as a licensed agent in the State of
California, to go through their 3-year internal University program called, New York Life
Insurance Company University (or NYLICU). The courses involve financial service
strategies, and concepts.

What is your current occupation? (Please include a brief statement of duties.)

Currently I am beginning my practice in the financial services industry as a licensed
agent with New York Life Insurance Company. New York Life is the number one life
Insurance company in the world and leads the life insurance industry in the Fortune 100
list.

As an agent of NYL I help individuals, families and small businesses with financial
protection solutions, wealth accumulation services and preservation strategies, like
planning a strategy to minimize taxes during retirement.

When I meet with prospective clients, I take to time to introduce myself and get to know
them, their families, or their business. I ask questions and listen. I take notes and help
them navigate their short term, midterm, and long-term financial goals. I then take all
the information that is gathered in our first appointment and my team, and I work
together to design a financial plan that will help the client get to their desired financial
destination.



Boards on which you serve or have served:

Organization: Querflow Farms Type of Involvement: Treasurer
Organization: Type of Involvement:

Community and professional organizations:

Organization: Riverside County Church of Christ
Type of Involvement: Christian minister (college ministry)

Please provide the names of three references not affiliated with our
organization:

1. Tim Montoya
2. Luis Alvarez
3. Al Cross

Which specific committees interest you?

(X) Public Relations ( ) Fund Development ( X) New
Program Development

() Marketing () Other (please describe below)



3.4



December, 2021
Warrant Register

Total Warrant Invoice Fund

Warrant ID Name Payment Date Amount Description Fund Amount PO No.
14844669 Citi Cards 12/2/2021 S 5,398.82 Citibank - Costco Student Supp 6200 S 333.78 0000001407
14844669 Citi Cards 12/2/2021 $ 5,398.82 Admin Supplies - Costco - More 6200 S 5.33 0000001305
14844669 Citi Cards 12/2/2021 S 5,398.82 Auto expenses - Gas, Maintenan 6200 S 58.79 0000001303
14844669 Citi Cards 12/2/2021 S 5,398.82 Citibank - Child Nutrition and 6200 S 4,573.11 0000001387
14844669 Citi Cards 12/2/2021 S 5,398.82 Janitorial Services - Oceansid 6200 S 354.79 0000001346
14844669 Citi Cards 12/2/2021 $ 5,398.82 Admin - Costco Supplies - Ocea 6200 S 73.02 0000001304
14844670 Eide Bailly LLP 12/2/2021 S 5,450.00 Annual Audit & Form 990 Tax Fo 6200 S 5,450.00 0000001323
14844671 Zuleyma Hernandez 12/2/2021 S 25.70 Employee Reimbursment 6200 S 25.70 employee
14844672 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/2/2021 S 294.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14844672 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/2/2021 $ 294.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14844673 COSCO FIRE PROTECTOIN, INC 12/2/2021 S 618.20 Replace & Install 2 New Emerge 6200 S 618.20 0000001449
14844674 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 12/2/2021 S 124.05 CLASSROOM TECH 6200 S 124.05 0000001452
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Sports supplies 6200 S 470.37 0000001451
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 sports teams rentals 6200 S 128.03 0000001444
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Lease Web 6200 S 162.74 0000001439
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 $ 4,657.67 Lively/Great Call - Cell Phone 6200 S 20.93 0000001396
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Mission Federal - Instruction 6200 S 501.56 0000001386
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Postage Services - MV Stamps.c 6200 S 24.99 0000001374
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Postage - Admin Oceanside 6200 S 140.00 0000001373
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Postage- Student 6200 S 360.00 0000001373
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Postage Services - Satmps.com 6200 S 24.99 0000001373
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Off-site Storage 6200 S 425.59 0000001362
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Maintenance and Building Suppl 6200 S 70.67 0000001358
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Google Adworks 6200 S 1,500.00 0000001315
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Facebook Ads 6200 S 719.12 0000001314
14844675 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/2/2021 S 4,657.67 Deluxe - Deposit Slips General 6200 S 108.68 0000001437
14844676 NANPOR SECURITY SERVICES 12/2/2021 S 1,259.65 Security Guard Oceanside 6200 S 1,259.65 0000001430
14844677 KIRA FOX 12/2/2021 S 115.00 Office Supplies - MoVal 6200 S 115.00 0000001382
14844678 PALOMAR FAMILY COUNSELING 12/2/2021 S 7,728.00 Palomar Family Counseling 6200 S 7,728.00 0000001443
14844679 RONALD LARRY HOLDEN 12/2/2021 S 2,680.00 Handyman Services 6200 S 80.00 0000001364
14844679 RONALD LARRY HOLDEN 12/2/2021 S 2,680.00 lJanitorial Services 6200 S 2,600.00 0000001364
14845745 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/6/2021 S 147.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14845746 Pediatric Therapy Services, LLC 12/6/2021 S 18,540.25 Stepping Stones - Sped Teacher 6200 S 18,540.25 0000001400
14845747 HopSkipDrive, INC 12/6/2021 S 2,465.97 Sped Transportation 6200 S 2,291.47 0000001413




December, 2021
Warrant Register

Total Warrant Invoice Fund

Warrant ID Name Payment Date Amount Description Fund Amount PO No.
14845747 HopSkipDrive, INC 12/6/2021 S 2,465.97 Sped Transportation 6200 S 174.50 0000001413
14845748 AT&T MOBILITY 12/6/2021 S 473.52 Cell Phone Replacements 6200 S 61.34 0000001302
14845748 AT&T MOBILITY 12/6/2021 S 473.52 Cell phone service 6200 S 412.18 0000001302
14845749 EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DIST 12/6/2021 S 221.19 Water Utilities - Moreno Valle 6200 S 221.19 0000001351
14845750 MORENO VALLEY UTILITY 12/6/2021 S 1,352.65 Electrical Utilities - Moreno 6200 S 1,352.65 0000001360
14845751 NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVICES, LLC 12/6/2021 S 75.00 Administrative Fees for Employ 6200 S 75.00 0000001375
14845752 OFFICE DEPOT 12/6/2021 S 89.13 Office Supplies - OCEANSIDE CA 6200 S 15.90 0000001376
14845752 OFFICE DEPOT 12/6/2021 S 89.13 Office Depot - Student Supplie 6200 S 42.01 0000001385
14845752 OFFICE DEPOT 12/6/2021 S 89.13 Office Supplies - OCEANSIDE CA 6200 S 31.22 0000001376
14845753 VCC OCEAN RANCH CONDO. ASSOC. 12/6/2021 S 6,024.00 Property Association Fees - Oc 6200 S 6,024.00 0000001370
001605 MV MEDICAL CTR MASTER ASSOC 12/8/2021 $ 1,132.00 Master Association Fees - More 6200 S 1,132.00 0000001359
001606 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/8/2021 S 18,130.94 Mortgage Payment - Oceanside - 6200 S 2,719.64 0000001312
001606 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/8/2021 $ 18,130.94 Mortgage Payment - Oceanside - 6200 S 15,411.30 0000001312
001607 WASTE MANAGEMENT 12/8/2021 S 132.40 Trash Services - Moreno Valley 6200 S 132.40 0000001371
14847360 Cordata Shredding 12/9/2021 $ 99.32 Off-site Secure Storage 6200 S 99.32 0000001306
14847361 ADT SECURITY SERVICES 12/9/2021 $ 67.90 Security System - Moreno Valle 6200 S 67.90 0000001292
14847362 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 12/9/2021 S 438.79 CLASSROOM TECH 6200 S 374.76 0000001452
14847362 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 12/9/2021 S 438.79 CLASSROOM TECH 6200 S 64.03 0000001452
14847363 COX BUSINESS SERVICES 12/9/2021 S 461.09 Admin- Internet & Phone Servic 6200 S 69.16 0000001308
14847363 COX BUSINESS SERVICES 12/9/2021 S 461.09 Student - Internet & Phone Ser 6200 S 391.93 0000001308
14847364 SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS 12/9/2021 S 199.45 Bottled Water Service 6200 S 180.15 0000001368
14847364 SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS 12/9/2021 S 199.45 Bottled Water Service 6200 S 19.30 0000001368
14847365 HR DIRECT 12/9/2021 S 97.41 HR Employment Posting - Both C 6200 S 97.41 0000001331
14847366 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/9/2021 $ 359.80 Winterfest -Gingerbread Houses 6200 S 359.80 0000001456
14847367 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 12/9/2021 S 2,300.93 Electrical Utilities Oceanside 6200 S 2,300.93 0000001366
14848610 Total Education Solutions 12/13/2021 S 396.50 TES Therapy 6200 S 396.50 0000001401
14848611 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/13/2021 $ 488.28 Reliable Translations 6200 S 341.28 0000001399
14848611 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/13/2021 S 488.28 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14848612 Pediatric Therapy Services, LLC 12/13/2021 S 13,532.00 Stepping Stones - Sped Teacher 6200 S 13,532.00 0000001400
14848613 YOUNG, MINNEY & CORR, LLP 12/13/2021 S 1,774.82 Legal Services 6200 S 1,774.82 0000001392
14850263 Cordata Shredding 12/16/2021 S 79.37 Oceanside Shred 6200 S 79.37 0000001306
14850264 NlIssan Motor Acceptance Corporation 12/16/2021 S 705.19 Nissan 6200 S 343.20 0000001319
14850264 Nlssan Motor Acceptance Corporation 12/16/2021 S 705.19 Nissan 6200 S 361.99 0000001319
14850265 Specialized Therapy Services, Inc 12/16/2021 S 2,404.13 Specialized Therapy Services - 6200 S 2,404.13 0000001429




December, 2021
Warrant Register

Total Warrant Invoice Fund

Warrant ID Name Payment Date Amount Description Fund Amount PO No.
14850266 Linda Moore 12/16/2021 S 374.78 Conference Expenses 6200 S 374.78 employee
14850267 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/16/2021 S 588.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14850267 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/16/2021 S 588.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14850267 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/16/2021 S 588.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14850267 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/16/2021 S 588.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14850268 Karen Connor 12/16/2021 $ 1,525.00 CPR/AED Safety Training Equipm 6200 S 1,525.00 0000001457
14850269 Diamond Environmental Services, LP 12/16/2021 S 272.90 Handwash Basins - Student Lunc 6200 S 272.90 0000001350
14850270 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 12/16/2021 S 38.62 CLASSROOM TECH 6200 S 38.62 0000001452
14850271 CHUCK'S FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 12/16/2021 S 68.00 Fire Extinguisher Service - Mo 6200 S 68.00 0000001344
14850272 COX BUSINESS SERVICES 12/16/2021 S 281.15 Security Cameras Oceanside 6200 S 281.15 0000001349
14850273 JAN-PRO OF SAN DIEGO 12/16/2021 S 3,799.00 Janitorial Services - Oceansid 6200 S 3,799.00 0000001355
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Winter Festival Oceanside 6200 S 42.42 0000001455
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Winter Festival Moreno Valley 6200 S 25.91 0000001454
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Lease Web 6200 S 81.37 0000001439
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Mission Federal - Instruction 6200 S 346.22 0000001386
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Postage Services - MV Stamps.c 6200 S 24.99 0000001374
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 $ 2,768.22 Postage Services - Satmps.com 6200 S 24.99 0000001373
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Off-site Storage 6200 S 412.42 0000001362
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Facebook Ads 6200 S 809.90 0000001314
14850274 MISSION FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 12/16/2021 S 2,768.22 Google Adworks 6200 S 1,000.00 0000001315
14850275 KIRA FOX- CUSTODIAN OF PETTY CASH 12/16/2021 S 85.00 Office Supplies - MoVal 6200 S 85.00 0000001382
14850276 CAMPBELL, GINA 12/16/2021 S 18.00 Conference Expenses 6200 S 18.00 employee
14850277 SECURITY SIGNAL DEVICES, INC. 12/16/2021 S 795.21 Fire Alarm System - Moreno Val 6200 S 276.36 0000001369
14850277 SECURITY SIGNAL DEVICES, INC. 12/16/2021 S 795.21 Fire Alarm System - Moreno Val 6200 S 518.85 0000001369
14850278 V TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION 12/16/2021 S 920.13 BLANKET HARDWARE V-TECH 6200 S 43.30 0000001422
14850278 V TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION 12/16/2021 S 920.13 BLANKET HARDWARE V-TECH 6200 S 876.83 0000001422
001745 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/20/2021 $  18,130.94 Mortgage Payment - Oceanside - 6200 S 2,719.64 0000001312
001745 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/20/2021 $  18,130.94 Mortgage Payment - Oceanside - 6200 S 15,411.30 0000001312
001746 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/20/2021 $  12,355.89 Mortgage Payment - MV Wells Fa 6200 S 9,884.71 0000001313
001746 PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL 12/20/2021 $  12,355.89 Mortgage Payment - MV Wells Fa 6200 S 2,471.18 0000001313
14851211 Total Education Solutions 12/20/2021 S 99.75 TES Therapy 6200 S 99.75 0000001401
14851212 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/20/2021 S 441.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14851212 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/20/2021 $ 441.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399
14851212 Reliable Translations Inc. 12/20/2021 S 441.00 Reliable Translations 6200 S 147.00 0000001399




December, 2021
Warrant Register

Total Warrant Invoice Fund
Warrant ID Name Payment Date Amount Description Fund Amount PO No.
14851213 KIRA FOX- CUSTODIAN OF PETTY CASH 12/20/2021 S 100.00 Office Supplies - MoVal 6200 S 100.00 0000001382
14851214 ERIN L GORENCE 12/20/2021 S 168.72 Conference Expenses 6200 S 168.72 employee

14851215 MECK, KATHY 12/20/2021 S 45.00 Winterfest Expenses 6200 S 45.00 employee
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MASTER CONTRACT

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,
NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES

LEA PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL

Contract Year 2021-2022

Nonpublic School
Nonpublic Agency
Type of Contract:
X Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the

term of this contract.

Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA)
into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.

Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose
of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year’s rates for 90 days at the sole
discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:

When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above
shall amend Section 4 — Term of Master Contract.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

i

&

MASTER CONTRACT

CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS
TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT
FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

DEFINITIONS

II. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8.
9

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

10.
11.
12.
13.

NOTICES

MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO
CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES
TERMINATION

INSURANCE

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

SUBCONTRACTING

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

NON-DISCRIMINATION

III. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.
22,
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34,
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.

FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION

GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

CLASS SIZE

CALENDARS

DATA REPORTING

LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT
STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS
STUDENT DISCIPLINE

IEP TEAM MEETINGS

SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

TRANSCRIPTS

STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM
PARENT ACCESS

£
0
H LW NN — - ()

AN n

— — \0 O O OO O

OO

11
11
12
12
13
13
14
14
14
15
16
16
17
17
17
18
18
19
19
19



41.

42,
43.

LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS
AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS

STATE MEAL MANDATE

MONITORING

IV. PERSONNEL

44,
45.
46.
47,
48.

CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

STAFF ABSENCE

STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR

V. HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
5S.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

VI. FINANCIAL

56.

57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.

ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,
ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES

RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

INSPECTION AND AUDIT

RATE SCHEDULE

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

EXHIBIT A: RATES
EXHIBIT B: INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

19
20
20

21
21
22
23
23

23
24
24
24
24
25
25

25
26
27
27
28
28
29
29

32
34



2021-2022 CONTRACT NUMBER:

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: Pacific View Charter Schoal

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: ATX Learning LLC

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES
MASTER CONTRACT

AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.

MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or “Contract”) is entered into on January 4, 2021, between Pacific Vlew Charter
School hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the EED6rAd0 2w
i SELPA and AR BoiinnpbEcacy (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), heremafter
referred to as NPS/A or “CONTRACTOR” for the purpose of providing special education and/or related
services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections
56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq.,
AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that
this agreement does not commit LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any
student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an
authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by
CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement
(hereinafter referred to as “ISA”). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge
CONTRACTOR'’s obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student’s Individualized
Education Program (hereinafter referred to as “IEP”). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days
of a student’s enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an [SA for each student served by
CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic [EP
system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing.

Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter
referred to as “OAH”) order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or
authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not
responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP
team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is
signed by the student’s parent.

CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as
“CDE”) as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and
licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 et seq
and within the professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, certification and/or credential. A
current copy of CONTRACTOR’s NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE
pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement
is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver
is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract.
Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the
Master Contract.



In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that
operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils
shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services
and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR
shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state
to license, to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional
needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child,
and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR
operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the
appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any
changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4)
major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in

the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract
by the LEA.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all
applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations.
CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into
consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy
does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it
accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA
under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with
applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related
services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive
status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the
provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE
nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 (Title 5 California Code of
Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required
to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent
Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2022. In the event the contract negotiations are not
agreed to by June 30", the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (Title
5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all
of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR
is at the sole discretion of the LEA. '

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent
contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized representative shall be
provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized
representative.



INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR
TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master
Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master
Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract
or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance
documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the
application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If
CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative
within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the
newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new
Master Contract’s effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such
ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school
year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1)
and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be
bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between
CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion
of the LEA.

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“ISA”)

This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide
special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the
approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for
more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that
this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms
and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as
CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract
and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP or by written agreement
between the parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student’s parent,
CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student’s IEP subject to all procedural safeguards
required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified
in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code
sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service
at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5)
business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent
compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student
was served by the NPS/A.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH,
CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees
otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH
consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere
to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.



Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master
Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located,
or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code
section 56366(c) (2).

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

a.

The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the
California Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees.

The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible
for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA)
of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA.
The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special
education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of
Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which
entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as
defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).

The term “qualified” means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent
to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and
designated instruction and services and has met federal and state certification, licensing,
registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which he or she is
providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34
of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in
Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards
of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards
contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate
needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate
degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations.
(Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the
Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and
authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to
themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board
and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate
state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at
the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to
a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title S of the California Code of Regulations
section 3001(1).

“Parent” means:
i.  abiological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal
authority to make educational decisions for the child,
ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent or authorized to make
educational decisions for the child,
iii.  anindividual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent,
stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally
responsible for the child’s welfare,



iv.  asurrogate parent,

v.  a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational
decisions on the child’s behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance
with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under
contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services
for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified.

h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those
in comparable LEA programs.

i The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California Education
Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet
or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.

J- It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Contract” and is referred to as such in
this document.

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8.

NOTICES

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand
and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page
of the Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of
this Master Contract.

MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations.
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5)
years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, “records” shall
include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b)
including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code
of Regulations section 306 1; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service
logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision;
daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional
instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports
(BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes,
telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however,
such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials
held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates
of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer
sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules
when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications by-
laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general
journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents
evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled
checks or facsimile thereof.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent
unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of
CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an
access log for each student’s record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or
receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education
Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for
each individual requesting or receiving information from the student’s record. Such log needs to record
access to the student’s records by: (a) the student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has
been executed by the student’s parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate
educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall
maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this
paragraph, “employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR? do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall
grant parents access to student records, and comply with parents’ requests for copies of student records, as
required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency
closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not
limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER’s, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other
relevant reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon
request within five (5) business days.

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the
remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR’s successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of
any change of ownership or corporate control.

VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the
County where the LEA is located.

MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory
guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification
shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days’ notice of any such changes or modifications
made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which
the modification or changes are based.

TERMINATION

This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public
class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the
public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give twenty
(20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination,
CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain
under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section
5 or6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall
give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

INSURANCE



CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the
term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer
with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages,
liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with
CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the
work or any component or part thereof’

PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A.

Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage,
with limits as follows:

$2,000,000 per occurrence

$ 500,000 fire damage

$ 5,000 medical expenses

$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury

$3,000,000 general aggregate

$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual
molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for
sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a
supplemental policy providing such coverage.

Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor
Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations
pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers’
Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits
of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.

Commercial Auto Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with
a $1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from
students’ homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR
must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage,
including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is
afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by

endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

$1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 general aggregate

CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request,
shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate
of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial
General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of
Education additional insured’s premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by
CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this
contract at no additional charge.

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be declared to and approved by
the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR’s sole
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PART II -

cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles
or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a
bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.

For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the
CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its
subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA,
its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency
submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on
the certificate.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED
WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”)

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the following
insurance policies are required:

A.

Commercial General Liability including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits
as follows:

$3,000,000 per occurrence
$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional
insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be
applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC’s insurance primary
despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC’s policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no
Self-Insured Retention above $100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor
Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to
the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers’ Compensation Insurance
coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of
$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.

Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per
Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus
services, the required coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.

Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees
who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other
assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be $250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured
retention.

Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice coverage with minimum limits of
$3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.

Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the
Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum
limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section
is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.



16.

17.

18.

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board
Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA
Indemnities™) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees)
resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense,
damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of
CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed
directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall
arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member
District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense
at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board
Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“CONTRACTOR
Indemnities™) harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees)
resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense,
damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of
LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or
indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the self-
insurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that
its self-insurance covers the LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent
relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this
Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any
commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any
association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or
employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any
individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principle, employer or co-employer of
CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and
all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs,
taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education
and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide
the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to
provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of
receipt of CONTRACTOR’s original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the
fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the
provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any
student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term
of each subcontract. Such subcontractor’s insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each
subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage
required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind

9



19.

20.

coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to
be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor’s work commences. The Commercial General
Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as
additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract.
All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency
submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting
the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45
Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its
Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of
Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict
of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090
including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports,
and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student’s advocate. Pursuant to California Education code
section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not
recommend placement at CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted
by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of
interest.

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with
CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education
and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR
to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR
regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is
enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a
report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid
conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation
(hereinafter referred to as “IEE”) and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE
by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom
the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator
whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request
and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has
read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special
education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an
individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to
executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated
instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to
ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a
private pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to
pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the
basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion,
age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or
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expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal
or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group
with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.

22.

FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition
Plan (hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall
provide to each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the
NPS/A consistent with the student’s IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS,
CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services
outlined in the student’s IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services
Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for
the provision of all .appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the
student’s IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education
and/or related services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings,
assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student’s enrollment under the terms
of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low
incidence disabilities when specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property
of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment
is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure
that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health
and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student’s parent(s) for services and/or activities not
necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the
student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the
LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student’s parent(s) of the cost
and voluntary nature of the services and/or activititcs. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA
requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public
education shall not interfere with the student’s receipt of special education and/or related services as
specified in the student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in
writing.

GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

Al NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification
and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 ef seq..

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize
evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA’s standards regarding the particular course of study
and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational,
assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular
course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Students
shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards
(“CCSS”) for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive;
and provide standards — aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive,
used by a local education agency (LEA), that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c)
extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and
vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental
assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college
counseling.
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23.

24,

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to
CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading
toward graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high
school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA’s graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s general program of
instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE
guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. The NPA providing
Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service
for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. School-
based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided
at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR
that is a Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the
presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or
caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as
requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is
present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately
notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to
LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master
Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or
trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE
Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for
transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by
CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided
to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed
in accordance with the student’s IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP
and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at
the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual
instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise
specified in the student’s IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school
day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed in accordance with the
student’s IEP.

CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of
one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon
prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a
ratio of | teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to
provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students,
and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that school,
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25.

26.

the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated
staff. The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may
be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in
writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between
the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child
ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with
the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent
to the number of days determined by the LEA’s extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include
only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the
IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school
calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing
in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the students’ IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A
student shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP
Team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of
twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any
days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing,
prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school
year and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be
eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays
and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the
delivery of any NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at
the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran’s
Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President’s Day,
Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date
upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved
calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified
in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-
developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and [SA. Unless otherwise specified
in the LEA student’s ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those
days that the LEA student’s school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school.
CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the
LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually
been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to
be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on
weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing,
in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days
provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing
information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract,
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including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. Itis
understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development,
service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional
progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with
appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon
by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of
all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a
disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education
Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral
restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900
and 48915.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for. such data including,
but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of
CONTRACTOR'’S provided forms at their discretion.

LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive
Environment (“LRE”) options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to
have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum
extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings
regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration
of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary
to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting,
CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended activities to support
the transition.

STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer
all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress
(“CAASPP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (“DRDP”), California Alternative Assessment
(“CAA”), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness
Gram, , the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (“ELPAC”), and as appropriate to
the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code
section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by
the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability
program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S qualified staff.
CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as
required by LEA.

MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and
procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation,
standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities,
dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized
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testing and IEPs. LEA shall providle CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings.
Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, et seq., 56521.1
and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others
must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with
the federal law and it’s implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team
determines that a student’s behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is
required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to
address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States
Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention
Plan (“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student’s behavioral problems
through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1
regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that
all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based
practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR’s pupil
population. The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact
or interaction with pupils during the schoolday, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction
with pupils during the schoolday. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance
with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the
training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for
a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions
may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of
serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately
prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the
behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from
the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as
a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It
requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical
intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property
damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies require
a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours
for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone.
If the student’s IEP does not contain a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”) or Positive Behavior Intervention
Plan (“PBIP”), an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine
if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student
already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been
exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule
with LEA an [EP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay
for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:
(1) Any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to,
electric-shock (2) An intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant
sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies
adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An
intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse,
ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive
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interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities,
including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques
may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in
a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room. (7) An intervention that
precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that deprives the individual of one or
more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child’s learning or that of
others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of positive behavioral
interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section
1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are
used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple
uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student’s parent/guardian when any type of
physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or
mechanical restraint or seclusions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the
reporting and notification requirements listed above.

STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with
state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education
or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA,
on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA
student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory
offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents
resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of
Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for
disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA.
Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student’s name; the time, date, and
description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such
disciplinary action. A copy of the student’s behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written
discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an
IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10™) day of suspension.

IEP TEAM MEETINGS

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each
student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of
Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the
NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be
transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii))
and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for
any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided
to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as
the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the
transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each
student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except
as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team
meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term
of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student’s
IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and
participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team
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meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA.
CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers
upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an 1EP
meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'’S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this
Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for
all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA’s discretion. The LEA or SELPA may provide training
for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain
confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the
system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of
the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting
provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP. In
the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the
CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change
in the student’s placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement
unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and
appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as
the child’s parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under
the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-
300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section
42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the
educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time
after the completion of the pupil’s second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil
in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice
otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations
and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation further includes the willingness to make
CONTRACTOR’s staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due
process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of
documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any
other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be
limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator
and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of
CONTRACTOR’s program and/or the implementation of a particular student’s IEP/Individual and Family
Service Plan (“IFSP”).

COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent
complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with
appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures
pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 ef seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy
pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy,
California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a)
(d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and
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Accountability Act (“HIPAA”). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA.
CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students
and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints,
including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation.

STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall
provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports
shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report
cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR’s place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and
LEA student’s parent(s) quarterly.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to
determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data
sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress
on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such
data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data
supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by
the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the
student’s annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student’s present
levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and
pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of
its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days
prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols
and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives,
progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an
assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that
CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be
added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA’s sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For NPA
services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065,
shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of
services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each
professional’s license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student’s parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report
cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings.
It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It
is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil’s
record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

TRANSCRIPTS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester,
or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on
LEA approved forms to the student’s school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of
diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of
students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

18



38.

39.

40.

41.

STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student’s change of
residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student’s change of residence as specified
in LEA Procedures. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation
to notify CONTRACTOR of the student’s change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and
provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student’s change of
residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA
shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student’s change of residence.

WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business
days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including
student’s change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student’s discharge
against professional advice from a NPS/RTC.

PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not
limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters.
CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA
students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent’s reasonable
request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require
that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA
at least thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations
and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-
related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student’s home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least
one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an
emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA
prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency
situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization
for emergency situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the
NPS/NPA service provider.

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing,
to the LEA.

LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL
TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational
placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and
Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005),
AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter
772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in the LEA Procedures. An LCI
shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education Code
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section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education
Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 5603 1; Cal. Code
Regs., Title 5, section 3001 et seq., regarding the provision of counseling services, including residential
care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s [IEPs. CONTRACTOR shall meet all
monitoring requirements as noted in Section 43 below.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall
provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special
education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education
eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each
student’s IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed
agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement
until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the [EP team determines that a NPS placement
is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s parent or another adult with educational decision-
making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that
operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively,
special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the
federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CVONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under
California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550.

MONITORING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit
during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a
master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to
the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward
the goals set forth in the pupil’s individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making
toward the goals set forth in the pupil’s behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the
pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA (or SELPA) shall report the findings
resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of
the onsite visit.

The LEA (or SELPA) shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does
not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement.

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring
of each student’s instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe
the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student’s records and progress. Such
access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to
CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review
of each student’s progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether
CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section
1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (“Superintendent”) shall monitor CONTRACTOR’S
facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching
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staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the
standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall
complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and
(3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as
aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code
section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant
state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-
up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause.
The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety;
curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the
applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California
Education Code Section 33126.

PERSONNEL

44,
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CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237,
35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California
Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers who will
have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that
CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI
clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and
volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students,
or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious
felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the
employee’s conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for
employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Contractor shall certify to LEA
that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all
employees who may come into contact with students.

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information,
CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal
background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each
owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site,
as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background
clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section
11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by
CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license,
certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold
in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to
Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code
of Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services
within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each
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profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special
education teacher’s scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services
to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided
to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and
instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The
administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An
administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of
experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school
counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral
Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master’s degree
issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling,
behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special
education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming
an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral
Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A
license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California
Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5))

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and
teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections
45340 et seq. and 45350 et seq. Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to,
instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by
CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a
high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a)
completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s
(or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or
local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics;
or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and
mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations
governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that
operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by
that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials,
certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or
related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents
are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA
with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test
clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to
work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other
documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR.
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CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes
occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students.
CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers
are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or
lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be
obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are
expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is
providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in
credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension
or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR’s service provider
is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as
determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s
service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute
for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or
CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified
service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been
providled. CONTRACTOR shall not “bank™ or “carry over” make up service hours under any
circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA
representative.

STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR
SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to
the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within
the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession
as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made
available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A
providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus
consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the
CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is
responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that
at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in
an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the
parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and
signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer
associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR
to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

49.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations,
ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR
shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 49406, and Health
and Safety Code Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR’s employees and
volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual

23



50.

51.

52.

53.

volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before
an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student.
CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and
to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to:
disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning
permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire
drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required
complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the
LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension
or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when
CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication
during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the
administration of such medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written
statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which
such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student’s parent(s) granting
CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician’s statement.
CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements.
CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such
written log shall specify the student’s name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each
administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s employee who administered the medication.
CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff training in the administration
of such medication consistent with physician’s written orders. Any change in medication type,
administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA.
CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures
specified in LEA Procedures.

CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are
familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and
procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To
protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain
confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the
legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted
to the LEA.
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SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds
of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR’s policy, as
well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of
retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints.
CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning
sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to
adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section
49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of
staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be
submitted as specified by the LEA.

FINANCIAL

S6.

ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND
BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an
appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to
implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance
reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA
Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services
specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and
services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance
forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for
instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be
completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available
for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five
(5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the
basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month
when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly
submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA.
At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and
times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed
to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service
and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing
that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification;
verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent
with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly
or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service
was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.
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Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA; an electronic
invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training prov1ded to the
CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period
in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number
of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45)
days of LEA’s receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in
California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and
submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA
shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely
corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June)
extend beyond December 3 1* after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master
Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year
unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay
in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification,
but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the
responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have
communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year.
LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole
or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days
other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive
services; (¢c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of
its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation
with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to
students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has
not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students
enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s
change of residence to another district or confirms the change or residence to another district, but fails to
notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from
Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood
that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close
of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a
Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for
regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a
review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety
(90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR
determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the
CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding
paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of
overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been
provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not
appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice
related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation
is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for
the service provided to the student.
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If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10)
business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding
payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment and the amount to
be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all
necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA’s withholding
payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of
CONTRACTOR’s written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR’s time to
correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should
not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes
payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR’s notice within thirty (30) business
days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes
payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding
the withholding of payment continues after the LEA’s response to CONTRACTOR’s notice,
CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA’s Representative
of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in
writing within fifteen (15) business days.

After sixty (60) business days: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the
Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of
Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2).

PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated
with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR
shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or
any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to
students.

PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an
appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with California
Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute
coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during
all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is
provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in
Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a
qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision
of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on
which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student’s IEP.

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, no later than the tenth (10%) cumulative day of a student’s unexcused absence,
CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California
Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days
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that a student’s attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under
state law. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be
adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was
served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student’s
attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (“ADA”) reimbursement under state law, nor
shall student be eligible for make-up services.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is aNPA and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall
provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless
LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers. LEA shall not pay for
services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation
evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar
days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not “bank” or
“carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by
CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not
provided shall be included.

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a NPA, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5™)
consecutive service day of the student’s absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services
when a student is absent.

LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with
guidelines followed by LEAs under Education Code Section 41422:

a. If CONTRACTOR remains open during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated
in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or
closed.

b. NPS School Closure- If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student,
CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to school
closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment
consistent with the signed ISA, as though the student were continuing in their regular attendance, until
alternative placement can be found.

c. LEA and NPS School Closure- On days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment
consistent with the signed ISA, until alternative placement can be found. If the LEA is able to obtain
alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student
is not in attendance due to school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost
instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for
make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as
appropriate.

INSPECTION AND AUDIT
The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books,

records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed
to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.
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CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records
as defined by California Education Code section 4906 1(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service
logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service
logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior
intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone
logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held,
documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-
paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school
calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies;
state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other
documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and
bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced
inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including
operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTORs offices (to be
specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within
five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide
assistance for such examination or audit. LEA’s rights under this section shall also include access to
CONTRACTOR’s offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s employees. If any document or
evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA
agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements
of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent
agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over
billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA
shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying
the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing,
CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing and/or
failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by
an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm.
CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice
demanding payment.

RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum
dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided
specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may
be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on
the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section
46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified
personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related
services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

(a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not presently
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by
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(b)

any Federal agency, and

Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or
subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making
false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or
otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these
offenses.
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The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or
18 day of July, 2021 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on

June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

representatives. This contract is effective on the

CONTRACTOR

ATX Learning LLC.
Nonpublic School/Agency

;:?_n// 4424! 01/12/2022
By§

“Signature Date

Syed Muasir Khalil, President
Name and Title of Authorized

LEA

LEA Name

By:

Signature ‘ Date

Name and Title of Authorized

Representative Representative

Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to: Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:
Syed Muasir Khalil, President
Name and Title Name and Title
ATX Learning LLC.
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider LEA
10821 Red Run Bivd, #407,
Address Address
Owings Mills MD 21117
City State Zip City State Zip
(512) 593-5222 (512) 212-1338 -
Phone Fax Phone Fax

info@atxlearning.com

Email T Email

Additional LEA Notification
(Required if completed)

Name and Title

Address

City State Zip
Phone Fax

Email
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EXHIBIT A: 2021-2022 RATES
4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR
The CONTRACTOR:

The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER:

PER ED CODE 56366 — TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:

Maximum Contract Amount;’

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of this contract shall be as follows:

1) Daily Basic Education Rate:

2) Inclusive Education Program

{Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language services, Behavior Intervention

Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student's IEP.) DAILY RATE:

3) Related Services

SERVICE RATE

Intensive Individual Services (340

Lanquage and Speech (415 $95-$115

PERIOD

Per hour

Adapted Physical Education (425)
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)

Health and Nursing: Other Services (436) $85-$95

Assistive Technology Services (445

Per hour

Occupational Therapy (450 $95-$110

Physical Therapy (460 $90-$105

Per hour

individual Counseling (510

Per hour

Counseling and Guidance (515)

Parent Counseling (520

Sacial Work Services (525

Psychological Services (530) $100-$120

Behavior Intervention Services (535)

Per hour

Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)

Interpreter Services (715)

Audiological Services {720)
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Specialized Vision Services (725)

Orientation and Mobility (730)

Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)

Reader Services (745)

Transcription Services (755)

Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)

College Awareness {820)

Work Experience Education (850)

Job Coaching (855)

Mentoring (860)

Travel Training (870)

Other Transition Services (890)

Other (800}

Other (900) Special Education Teacher

$85-$90

Per hour
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EXHIBIT B: 2021-2022 I[SA

INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES
(Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.)

This agreement is effective on July 1, 2021 or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a nonpublic agency,
if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2022, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Master Contract and by applicable law.

Local Education Agency Nonpublic Schpol
LEA Case Manager: Name Phone Number
Pupil Name Sex[JM[OF Grade:

(Last) (First) (M.L)
Address City State/Zip
DOB Residential Setting: [J Home [] Foster [J LC! # [J OTHER
Parent/Guardian Phone ( ) ( )

(Residence) (Business)
Address City State/Zip
(If different from student)
AGREEMENT TERMS:
1. Nonpublic School: The average number of minutes in the instructional day wifl be: during the regular school year
during the extended schoo! year

2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in the calendar of the school year are; during the regular school year

during the extended school year

3. Educational services as specified in the IEP shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR and paid at the rales specified below.
A, INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC EDUCATION PROGRAM RATE: (Applies to nonpublic schools only): Daily Rate:

Estimated Number of Days x Daily Rate = PROJECTED BASIC EDUCATION COSTS
B. RELATED SERVICES:
Provider
SERVICE LEA NPS OTHER # of Times per Cost per Maximum Estimated Maximum
Specify wk/molyr., Duration; session Number of Total Cost for
or per |EP; Sessions Contracted Perlod
or as needed

Intensive Individual Services (340)

Language/Speach Therapy {415)
a. Individual
b. Group

Adapted Physical Ed. (425)

Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical
Health Care (435)

Health and Nursing Services: Other (436)

Assistive Technology Services (445)

Occupational Therapy (450)

Physical Therapy (460)

Individual Counseling (510)

Counseling and guidance (515).

Parent Counseling (520)
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SERVICE

Provider

LEA

NPS

OTHER

Specify

# of Times per
wkimelyr., Duration;
or per [EP;
or as needed

Cost per
session

Maximum
Number of
Sesslons

Estimated Maximum
Total Cost for
Contracted Perlod

Social Work Services (525)

Psychological Services (530)

Behavior Intervention Services (535)

Specialized Services for Low Incidence
Disabilities (610)

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Services (710)

Interpreter Services (715)

Audiological Services (720)

Specialized Vision Services (725)

Crientation and Mobility (730)

Braille Transcription (735)

Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)

Reader Senvices (745)

Note Taking Services (750)

Transcription Services (755)

Recreation Services (760)

College Awareness Preparation (820)

Vocational Assessment, Counseling,
Guidance and Career Assessment (830)

Career Awareness (840)

Work Experience Education (850)

Mentoring (860)

Agency Linkages {865)

Travel Training (870)

Other Transition Services (890)

Cther (300}

Other (900)

Transportation-Emergency
b. Transportation-Parent

Bus Passes

Other

ESTIMATED MAXIMUM RELATED SERVICES COST$
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TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BASIC EDUCATION AND RELATED SERVICES COSTS$

4,  Other Provisions/Attachments:

5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD ON

6.Progress Reporting Quarterly Monthly Other
Requirements: — (Specify)

The parties hereto have executed this Individual Services Agreement by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives as set forth
below.

-CONTRACTOR- -LEA/SELPA-

ATX Learning LLC.
(Name of Nonpublic School/Agency)

. (Name of LEA/SELPA)
%W 01/12/2022
(Signature) (Date)  (Signature) (Date)
Syed Muasir Khalil, President
(Name and Title) (Name of Superintendent or Authorized Designee)

36



9.1



Pacific View Charter School Course Outline

Course Title: Literacy Prep. Virtual Course #: 1318
Department: Electives Credits: 5

Course Description: Literacy Prep. Virtual uses Edgenuity My Path curriculum to raise reading
achievement. The curriculum meets students where they are and is designed to accelerate them
to grade level and beyond. Literacy Prep. Virtual prepares students to read, write, speak, listen,
and use language in a variety of content areas and contexts. Literacy Prep. Virtual helps students
build independence in the following domains: build independence as readers, speak confidently
and listen critically, write critically and effectively, and encounter worldviews.

Student Outcomes:
The student will be able to:

1) Read and analyze multimedia and print text critically.

2) Demonstrate a command of Standard English and choose precise academic language.

3) Build knowledge through the selection and comprehension of increasingly complex
informational and literary texts.

4) Acquire and use a wide-ranging vocabulary.

5) Gather, comprehend, evaluate, synthesize, and report on information and ideas.

6) Use evidence to construct effective arguments.

7) Critically and constructively evaluate other points of view.

Assessment: Ongoing diagnostic and formative assessments will assess student performance
and fluency in reading, vocabulary, and spelling and adapt the curriculum based on assessment
results.

Instructional Materials: Edgenuity MyPath www.edgenuity.com

Board Approval:
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Pacific View Charter School Course Outline

Course Title: ELD B Course #: 1319
Department: Elective Credits: 5

Course Description:

ELD provides a balanced approach to English language development, using communication-
based, content based, and literature-based lessons, based on the California English Language
Development standards. Reading and writing activities are designed to help students develop
literacy skills. Students are introduced to reading and writing through a variety of strategies
appropriate for the English language learners. English learners will use language to interact
meaningfully in school and beyond. In addition, English learners will be knowledgeable about
English and utilize language as a resource for communicating and learning. This course requires
students to use technology, cooperative learning, and other effective research-based learning
strategies. Students will be assessed in the four strands: reading, writing, listening & speaking,
and language (grammar and vocabulary) in order to demonstrate language acquisition and
prepare for the ELPAC Exam.

Student Outcomes:

Students will be able to:

Exchange information and ideas with others

Interact with others in written English

Offer and justify opinions, negotiate with and persuade others

Adapt language choices to various contexts (based on task, purpose, audience, and text

type)

Listen actively to spoken English in a range of social and academic contexts

Read closely literary/informational texts

7. View multimedia to determine how meaning is conveyed explicitly and implicitly
through language

8. Evaluate how writers/speakers use language to support ideas and arguments with details
or evidence

9. Analyze how writers/speakers use vocabulary and language for specific purposes (to
explain, persuade,entertain, etc.)

10. Express information and ideas in formal oral presentations on academic topic

11. Write literary and informational texts to present, describe, explain ideas and information
using technology

12. Justify own arguments and evaluate others’ arguments in writing

13. Select and apply varied and precise vocabulary and language structures to convey ideas

N =

oo

Assessment: Assessment of student outcomes will be based on student performance on
assignments and projects.




Instructional Materials: English 3D, Houghton Mifflin Harcourt, 2014. A variety of
supplemental materials and internet resources.

Board Approval Date:
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Pacific View Charter School Course Outline

Course Name: STEM L.iteracy B Course #: 1320
Credits: 5 Department: Electives

Course Description: STEM Literacy is a comprehensive course designed to raise reading
achievement in students preparing for entrance into a STEM job field. The curriculum meets
students where they are and is designed to accelerate them to grade level and beyond. STEM
Literacy prepares students to read, write, speak, listen and use language in a variety of science,
technology, engineering, and math areas and contexts including but not limited to career literacy,
college readiness, and day to day literacy skills. STEM Literacy helps students build
independence in the following domains: build independence as readers, speak confidently and
listen critically, write critically and effectively, and shift from primarily consumers to be both
consumers and producers of dynamic multimedia. Students will be prepared to enter post high
school life with the skills and knowledge necessary to succeed and communicate effectively in
the STEM fields.

Student Outcomes:
The student will be able to:
1. Read and analyze multimedia and print text critically.

2. Demonstrate a command of standard English and the ability to use academic and
professional language when communicating and writing contextually.

3. Increase knowledge through the reading and comprehension of increasingly complex
informational and expository texts.

4. Acquire, maintain, and use a wide-ranging vocabulary for use in speaking and writing in
a variety of professional contexts.

5. Gather, comprehend, evaluate, synthesize, and report on information and ideas.

6. Use evidence to construct effective recommendations, while practicing rhetorical
speaking and writing skills.

7. Develop study skills to maximize learning in all classes.

8. Critically and constructively evaluate other processes and systems.

Assessment: Ongoing diagnostic and formative assessments will assess student performance
and fluency in reading, vocabulary, listening and speaking. Writing assessments test students’
understanding of writing skills addressed in whole and small group instruction. Formative and
summative assessments will assess student performance in presenting, interviewing, discussing
and debating.

Instructional Materials: A variety of print and digital media including: various articles,
reports, guides, and other technical documents.

Board Approved:
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PACIFIC VIEW

CHARTER SCHOOL
A California Public School

Administration - Exempt

Job Description: Director of Central-Office-and-Finanece-Finance & Central Office

Description of Position:

The Director of Finance and Central Office is directly responsible to the Executive Director for the
administration of the budget, fiscal planning, purchasing, accounting, attendance, payroll, personnel,
facilities, and other general business and central office related functions efthe-seheel. The Director of
Finance and Central Office will be a member of the Executive Director’s Leadership Team.

Job-Funetions-Essential Dutiies and Responsibilities include, but are not limted to the

following:

Provides sound fiscal management services to the school in accordance with approved
policies, procedures, and practices; ensures appropriate monitoring and maintenance
protocol.

Responsible for budget development, control, and long-range financial planning
Explere Research the availability of alterrate-alternative funding sources avaiabiity-
Create and maintain General Ledger

Responsible for the assignment and management of the government account code
structure.

Responsible for internal and external audit preparation and completion.

Ensure the Annual Audit is completed and resolution of any findings are done
Completion of SB740 document within the State timeline.

Responsible for the development and submission of financial and attendance reports.
Serve as a resource in the area of proposed and current legislation pertaining to charter
schools.

Assist the Executive Director in facilitating and implementing the School’s Charter,
Memorandums of Understanding, the-Seheel-Charter, and other guidelines of the
School.

Develop and maintain regular contact with County Office of Education and Sponsoring
District Personnel.

Meet with outside agencies which include law enforcement, Child Protective Services,
and Probation Officers as required.

Assist with development and maintenance of School policies and procedures.

the-School: Assist employees in the coordination and completion of central office
activities and protocols.

Supervise office personnel, assigning and reviewing the work of clerical staff and HR &
Business Services Coordinator



Oversee and supervise the accounts payable - requisition and purchase order
processing, genreraHedger, accounts receivable, attendance, payroll, personnel and
other aceounting Central Office functions ef-the-Schoel.

Oversee and supervise the Sehoels-salary and fringe benefits program, including
leaves, FMLA, medical and dental benefits, unemployment and worker’'s compensation.
Oversee and supervise the maintenance of personnel records

Responsible for Brown Act compliance.

Act as Recording Secretary for PVCS Board of Trustees receiving and transcribing
confidential dictation, attend meetings and prepare minutes for distribution.
Responsible for preparation of Board packet with the assistance of the Technology
Technician.

Maintain or cause to be maintained all records and files of the School.

Establish and maintain internal accounting records and files.

Develop and maintain record retention policies, procedures and practices.

Oversee and participate in all maintenance and safety aspects of the facility.

Assist in the planning, maintenance, and development of the-interral-physicaHayoutof
the School facilityies.

Oversee the development and maintenance of the School Safety Plan and be an active
participant in Safety Committee.

hool D . N

Maintain or cause to be maintained the student attendance records of the School,
including student files, records and transcripts.

Attend necessary conferences, Charter School Business Manager meetings, Advisery
Leadership, Marketing, Safety and Special Events Committee meetings and other
internal and external meetings as assigned by the Executive Director.

Serve as a resource in administrative areas to the Executive Director.

Maintain the Executive Director’s calendar, travel, conference arrangement and
meetings schedule.

Serve as Liaison for the Oceanside V&€ and Moreno Valley Property Associations.
project board.

Perform other duties as assigned by the Executive Director

o Work toward team and school goals

Requirements:

Education and Experience:

Any combination of education, training and/or experience equivalent to:

A Bachelor’s degree with emphasis in accounting, economics or finance

Four (4) years of increasingly responsible eharter school experience in the State of
California, which includes three (3) years of experience managing personnel

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

Ability to plan, organize, write with clarity and correctness and work cooperatively with
fellow employees, staff, administrators, and parents.

Working knowledge of rules, regulations, laws, and policies as they relate to charter
schools.

Perform a variety of respensible detail-oriented administrative duties. and-detail.
Maintain complex, confidential or sensitive information and files.

Perform in situations requiring specialized knowledge, using tact and good judgment.



Physical Demands:

e Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard

e Sitting or standing for extended periods of time

e Hearing and speaking to exchange information and making presentations

e Seeing to read a variety of materials

e The amount of time for each activity varies depending on daily work load and priority
schedules. Some days, sitting could occur more frequently, and on other days standing and
walking could occur throughout the workday. May sit for prolonged time when completing
projects; however, standing breaks are encouraged

¢ Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform
essential functions

Work Environment:

School office environment
Constant interruptions
Evening or variable hours

Reasoning Ability:

License:

Prioritize, organize, and multi task.

Set high-level goals, develop long-range plans, problem-solve, lead and accept personal
accountability for moving in the direction of the Executive Director’s goals.

Coach and mentor staff using a reflective approach and dialogue to work collaboratively
with other administrative leaders in carrying out the work of the School.

Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures.

Prepare comprehensive narrative and statistical reports.

Perform under demanding, often stressful and varied work schedules with the ability to
remain flexible and focused with interruptions and distractions.

Possession of a valid California Driver’s License issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles

Supervisor: Executive Director

WORK YEAR: 248

Board Approved: February 18, 2014
Board Revised: February 17, 2015

January 18, 2022



